
AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2021, 7:30 P.M. 

The HAWK - Farmington Hills Community Center, Harrison Hall 

29995 W. Twelve Mile Rd., Farmington Hills, MI 48334 
www.fhgov.com 

(248) 871-2540 

1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Regular Meeting

A. LOT SPLIT 5, 2021 (Final) 

LOCATION: 20893 Gill Rd. 

PARCEL I.D.: 23-33-376-085 

PROPOSAL: Split parent parcel into two lots in an RA-3, 

One Family Residential District 

ACTION REQUESTED: Lot Split approval 

APPLICANT:  Mohammad Usman 

OWNER: Mohammad Usman 

B. SITE PLAN 61-8-2021 

LOCATION: 33000 Covington Club Dr. 

PARCEL I.D.: 23-02-226-027 

PROPOSAL: New leasing office for existing apartments in an RA-2,  

One Family Residential District (Multiple-family use in single- 

family zoning permitted by consent judgement) 

ACTION REQUESTED: Planning Commission approval 

APPLICANT:  Jeffrey Kaftan, Kaftan Enterprises, Inc. 

OWNER: Covington Club Apartments 

C. SITE PLAN 62-8-2021 

LOCATION: 29820 Nine Mile Rd. 

PARCEL I.D.: 23-26-482-001 

PROPOSAL: Parking lot improvement for existing site in 

LI-1, Light Industrial District  

ACTION REQUESTED: Planning Commission approval 

APPLICANT:  David Jappaya 

OWNER: 29820 W. Nine Mile, LLC 

5. Approval of minutes August 19, 2021 & Corrected July 15, 2021      

Regular Meeting 

6. Public Comment

7. Commissioner’s Comments

8. Adjournment

Respectfully Submitted, 

http://www.fhgov.com/


 

 John Trafelet 

 Planning Commission Secretary 

 

Staff Contact 

Mark Stec 

City Planner, Planning and Community Development 

248-871-2540 

mstec@fhgov.com 

 
NOTE:  Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has need of special assistance under the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk’s Office at 248-871-2410 at least two (2) business days prior 

to the meeting, wherein arrangements/accommodations will be made.  Thank you.   

mailto:egardiner@fhgov.com


LOT SPLIT 5, 2021 (Final) 

 

Approval: I move that Final Lot Split 5, 2021, submitted by Mohammad Usman, be 

approved because it appears to meet applicable provisions of Chapter 34 

“Zoning” and of Chapter 27, “Subdivision of Land”, of the City Code 

and will result in land parcels which are generally compatible with 

surrounding lots in the area; and that the City Assessor be so notified. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Denial: I move that approval of Final Lot Split 5, 2021, submitted by 

Mohammad Usman be denied for the following reasons: 

 

1. The proposal does not meet the following requirements of Chapter 

34 Zoning: 

 

 

 

 

2. The proposal would result in land use relationships which could be 

injurious to adjoining property. 

 

3. The proposed split would result in parcels that are generally not 

compatible with existing lots in the area for the following reasons: 

• Lot area 

• Lot width 

• Lot width-to-depth ratio 

 

4. Other: 



Lot Split 5, 2021

W 8 Mile Rd

Gi
ll R

d

Kirby St

Edmonton St

Rhonswood Dr

Ca
ss 

St

Fendt St

RC2

RA3

OS2OS1

B3

RA4

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 240

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Minor roads

Zoning Districts
Zoning Districts

B-3 General Business District
OS-1 Office Service District

OS-2 Planned Office Service District
RA-3 One Family Residential District
RA-4 One Family Residential District
RC-2 Multiple Family Residential

Lot Split 5, 2021
20893 Gill Rd., 33-376-085
Split parent parcel into two lots in RA-3



Lot Split 5, 2021

Gi
ll R

d

Fendt St

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 60

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Minor roads

Aerials-2020
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

Lot Split 5, 2021
20893 Gill Rd., 33-376-085
Split parent parcel into two lots in RA-3



 
 

 28 W. Adams, Suite 1200  |  Detroit, Michigan  48226  |  (313) 962-4442   
www.GiffelsWebster.com 

September 7, 2021 
 
Farmington Hills Planning and Community Development Department 
31555 W 11 Mile Rd 
Farmington Hills, MI 48336 
 

Lot Split Review  
 
Case:   Lot Split 5, 2021 
Site:    20893 Gill Road (Parcel ID 22-23-33-376-085) 
Applicant:  Mohammed Usman 
Plan Date:  8/17/2021 
Zoning:   RA-3 
 
We have completed a review of the application for a lot split referenced above and a summary of our 
findings is below. Items in bold require specific action by the Applicant.  Items in italics can be addressed 
administratively.   

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project:  Lot Split 5, 2021 

Page:  2 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS  
 
Existing Conditions 
 
1. Zoning. The total site is 25,623.87 square feet (0.58 acres) acres and zoned RA-3 One Family 

Residential (12,500 square feet).  

2. Existing site.  The property is vacant.  

3. Adjacent Properties.  

Direction Zoning Land Use 
North RA-3 Single-Family 
East RA-3 Single-Family 
South RA-3 Single-Family 
West RA-3 Single-Family 

 
Site Plan & Use: 
 
1. Summary of proposed split.  The split will result in two parcels: 

Parcel Frontage Size 
Parcel 1 114.9 ft on Fendt/106.87 ft on Gill 12,280.26 sq ft (0.28 acres) 
Parcel 2 115 ft on Fendt 13,343.61 sq ft (0.3 acres) 

 

2. Site configuration and access.  At present, the site has frontage on both Nine Mile and Bostwick, 
and is accessed via one driveway from Nine Mile. The proposed split would maintain the existing 
Nine Mile access point and lead to the creation of three additional driveways onto Bostwick.  

3. Dimensional standards. The rear setback of the RA-4 district is not met for existing home. However, 
the applicant has submitted a statement warranting that the home will be removed, and therefore, 
this is not an impediment to the split.  

Standard Required Proposed 
Min Lot Size 10,000 sq ft/12,500 avg Min 12,280.26 sq ft 
Min Lot Width 80 ft Min 106.78 ft 
Depth-to-width ratio 4-to-1 Both less than 1-to-1 

It appears that the buildable areas on both lots can meet the setback requirements of the district. 

4. Subdivision of Land Ordinance §27-110(2)(e), Compatibility with Existing Parcels. In order to assure 
that the public health, safety, and welfare will be served by the permission of any partition or 
division of land the planning commission’s review shall be in accordance with the following 
standards:   

a. If any parcel does not meet zoning ordinance requirements, the request shall be denied by the 
planning commission.  The parcels will meet the standards of the ordinance.  



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project:  Lot Split 5, 2021 

Page:  3 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

b. Any partition or division shall be of 
such location, size and character that, 
in general, it will be compatible with 
the existing development in the area in 
which it is situated.  The parcels will 
both have frontage on Fendt, and one 
will also front on Gill. Parcels in this 
area have a fairly wide variety of sizes, 
proportions, and widths. The 
immediately abutting parcel to the 
south is approximately the same size as 
the existing parcel; the split will create 
a rear-to-side relationship between the 
parcel to the south and Parcel 2.  This is 
not common in the neighborhood, but 
is similar to the arrangement of lots 
one block north at Gill and Rhonswood (see graphic).  

c. The planning commission shall give consideration to the following: 
1. The conformity of the resultant parcels with zoning ordinance standards and the creation 

of parcels compatible with surrounding lands as to area, width, and width-to-depth ratio.   
As noted above, parcels in this area have a variety of configurations and sizes, this 
arrangement is not atypical of block-end arrangements here. These lots are shallower 
than most in the area in relation to their width. 

2. The orientation of the yards of proposed parcels in relationship to the yards of 
surrounding parcels in order to avoid incompatible relationships, such as but not limited 
to, front yards to rear yards.  It does not appear that the proposed division will result in 
an incompatible relationship with surrounding parcels.  

3. The impact of any existing flood plains, wetlands, topography, or other natural features 
and physical conditions on the resulting parcels so that such parcels are compatible with 
other surrounding lands in terms of buildable area.  The site is not impacted by any natural 
features and is generally flat.     

4. The relationship of the front, side, and rear yards to the yards and orientation of 
buildings on other existing and potential parcels. This shall include the probable 
orientation of buildings on the parcels resulting from the proposed division or partition.  
The requested split is similar to other end-of-block/corner lot arrangements in the area.  

 
We are available to answer questions.  
 
Respectfully, 
Giffels Webster  
 
 

     
 
Rod Arroyo, AICP     Joe Tangari, AICP 
Partner       Senior Planner 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project:  Lot Split 5, 2021 

Page:  4 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Zoning 

 
 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project:  Lot Split 5, 2021 

Page:  5 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

 











SITE PLAN 61-8-2021 

 

Approval: I move that Site Plan 61-8-2021, dated August 27, 2021, submitted by 

Jeffrey Kaftan, Kaftan Enterprises, Inc., be approved because it appears to 

meet all applicable requirements of the Zoning Chapter. Subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Denial: I move that approval of Site Plan 61-8-2021, dated August 27, 2021, 

submitted by Jeffrey Kaftan, Kaftan Enterprises, Inc., be denied for the 

following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of W. Bloomfield

SP 61-8-2021

Northwestern Hwy

?@10

Mi
dd

leb
elt

 Rd

W 14 Mile Rd

Shrewsbury

Ave

Bri
ar

cre
st

Ct

Olde
Franklin Dr

Sh
rew

sb
ury

 A
ve

Balmoral
Knls

Friar Cir

Ta
rey

to
n A

ve
Lochmoor

Ave

Wyndham Ct

Olde Franklin Dr

Bri
ar

cre
st 

Kn
ls

Gilchrest Ave

No
tti

ng
ha

m
Kn

ls

Queensboro Ave

Covington Club Dr

P1

B2

RA1

RC1RA1

OS1

OS1

RA2

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 490

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Minor roads

Zoning Districts
Zoning Districts

B-2 Community Business District
OS-1 Office Service District
P-1 Vehicular Parking District
RA-1 One Family Residential District

RA-2 One Family Residential District
RC-1 Multiple Family Residential

Aerials-2020
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Site Plan 61-8-2021
33000 Covington Club Dr., 02-226-027
Garage and Sales Office for existing apartments in RA-2



SP 61-8-2021

W 14 Mile Rd

Mi
dd

leb
elt

 Rd

Sh
rew

sb
ury

 A
ve

Bri
ar

cre
st 

Kn
ls

Qu
ee

ns
bo

ro
Av

e

Ta
rey

to
n A

ve

Co
vin

gt
on

Cl
ub

Dr

Lochmoor Ave

Covington Club Dr

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 240

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Minor roads

Aerials-2020
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

Site Plan 61-8-2021
33000 Covington Club Dr., 02-226-027
Garage and Sales Office for existing apartments in RA-2



 
 

 28 W. Adams, Suite 1200  |  Detroit, Michigan  48226  |  (313) 962-4442   
www.GiffelsWebster.com 

September 7, 2021 
 
Farmington Hills Planning Department 
31555 W 11 Mile Rd 
Farmington Hills, MI 48336 
 

Site Plan Review 
 
Case:   SP 61-8-2021 
Site:    33000 Covington Club Drive 
Applicant:  Kaftan Enterprises 
Plan Date:  Revised 8/25/2021 
Zoning:   RA2 Single-Family Residential 
 
We have completed a review of the application for site plan approval and a summary of our findings is 
below. Items in bold require specific action.  Items in italics can be addressed administratively.   
 

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 61-8-2021, 33000 Covington Club – SPR2 

Page:  2 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS  
 
Existing Conditions 
 
1. Zoning. The parcel is zoned RA-2 Single-Family Residential. 

2. Existing site.  The complex occupies a total of 17.865 acres with 78 attached units. The area where 
the new building is proposed is occupied by trees and near a small complex office and pool. 

3. Adjacent properties. The property is on the south side of 14 Mile, at the complex entrance.  

Direction Zoning Land Use 
North (W Bloomfield) R-15 One Family Single-Family 
East RA-2 Portion of Covington Club Apartments 
South RA-2 Portion of Covington Club Apartments 
West RA-2 Single-Family 

4. Site configuration and access.  The building is accessed from Covington Club Drive.   

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 61-8-2021, 33000 Covington Club – SPR2 

Page:  3 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

 
Site Plan & Use: 
 
1. Proposed. The applicant is proposing to construct a small sales office for a multi-family complex. The 

new building is 705 square feet and located near the entrance to the complex off 14 Mile Road, 
adjacent to the existing pool building and swimming pool, as well as a small parking area that is not 
striped. The new building matches the existing and will be connected to it by a low wall with a gate 
leading to the pool area.  

2. Dimensional Standards (RA-2 district). The existing complex is a nonconforming use, originally 
approved in 1984. 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Min. Lot Size 15,000 sq ft 17.86 acres 
Min. Lot Width (34-3.1.11.E) 90 ft 480.58 ft 
Front Yard Setback (34-3.1.11.E.) 35 ft min.  36 ft to Covington Club Dr 
Rear Yard Setback (34-3.1.11.E.) 35 ft min. 147 ft 

Side Yard Setback (34-3.1.11.E.) -  8 ft min./20 total 13 ft to pool building; 
29.85 ft to nearest unit 

Lot Coverage (34-3.1.22.E.) 35% max. by all buildings 20% (total site) 
Building Height (34-3.1.22.E.) 30 ft 13 ft, 8 in 

Rooftop equipment (34-3.5.2.U.) 
Rooftop equipment shall be 
screened in accordance with 
Section 34-5.17. 

Rooftop equipment does 
not appear to be 
proposed; this should be 
confirmed. 

3. Dumpster (34-5.1.2.D). No dumpster is proposed.  

4. Mechanical Equipment (34-5.1.4.D). ground-mounted equipment is not noted on the plan; such 
equipment shall not be located on the Covington Club Drive side of the building.   

5. Minimum parking (34-5.2.11.D.iii). Two (2) spaces are required for an office space of this size. The 
parking area appears to accommodate this. Five spaces, including one ADA-accessible space are 
provided.  

6. Off-street parking dimensions (34-5.3.3.A & B.). 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 

Maneuvering lane width 
20 ft  
15 ft for diagonal spaces 
12 ft for parallel spaces 

25’ (this is also the 
primary driveway of the 
complex) 

Parking space width 9 ft for 90-degree spaces 
8.5 ft for diagonal spaces 
8 ft for parallel spaces 

9 ft 

Parking space length 20 ft.  for minimum required 
23 ft. for parallel spaces 
(May include a maximum two-foot 
unobstructed vehicle overhang area at 
the front of the parking space.) 

18 ft w/ 2 ft overhang 

7. Barrier Free Parking. One handicapped parking space is provided.   

8. Corner Clearance (34-5.10). Corner clearance is compliant.    



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 61-8-2021, 33000 Covington Club – SPR2 

Page:  4 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

9. Required Site Plan Elements. The zoning of the subject and surrounding properties should be noted 
on the site plan.  

10. Lighting (Section 34-5.16). It appears that the only lighting proposed is six sconces: two on the 
existing pool building, two on the new building, and two at the new gate in the low wall. Cut sheets 
of the fixtures should be provided to confirm that these meet the cut-off standard of the 
ordinance.  

a. Operation hours (34-5.16.3.B.v.). The following notes must be added to the plan; it is unclear 
from the existing plans whether these standards are met. The applicant should clarify how these 
standards are met.  

i. Exterior lighting shall not operate during daylight hours.  

ii. Building façade and landscape lighting shall be turned off between midnight or one hour 
after close of business, whichever is later, and 6:00am or opening, whichever is earlier.  

iii. All other exterior lighting shall be reduced to no greater than 70% of maximum from 
midnight or one hour after close of business, whichever is later, and 6:00am or opening, 
whichever is earlier.  

iv. Use of occupancy sensors to turn off or reduce lighting within 15 minutes of zero occupancy 
is recommended. 

b.  Illumination Levels 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Maximum height (34-
5.16.3.A.) 

15 feet maximum Height not provided; approx. 6-
7 feet 

Building Lighting  
(34-5.16.3.A. iii.) 

Relevant building elevation 
drawings showing all fixtures 
and the portions of the walls to 
be illuminated 

Fixtures shown, but details 
needed 

Average to minimum 
illumination ratio (34-
5.16.3.C) 

4:1 Not provided 

Maximum illumination at 
the property line 

0.3 fc Directed internally to complex 

Illumination Levels- 
Hardscape areas (e.g., 
parking areas, sidewalks) 

Max 2.5 lumens per sq ft of 
hardscape area 

Not provided 

Illumination Levels Building 
Entrances – within 20 ft of 
door 

1,000 lumens per door Not provided 

 

11. Pedestrian Connection (Sec. 34-5.19). The complex contains no sidewalks to connect to, other than 
the walk to the pool, which will be used to access this building.   

12. Landscape Development (34-5.14). The applicant is providing landscaping around the new building, 
including replacement trees. Existing screening is not affected by this plan.   

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 61-8-2021, 33000 Covington Club – SPR2 

Page:  5 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 

Minimum size and 
spacing requirements 
(34-5.14.F) 

Size Center to center 
distance (max)  

(Height/width) groupings rows  

• Evergreen Trees 8 ft. height 20 ft.  12 ft.  8 ft - compliant 

• Large Deciduous 3 in. caliper 30 ft.  - 3 in - compliant 

• Small deciduous trees 2 in. caliper 15 ft.  - 2.5 in - compliant 
 

13. Tree Removal & Replacement (34-5.18). Three regulated trees are proposed to be removed, and 
three replacement trees are provided, in addition to several other new trees.  

   
We are available to answer questions.  
 
Respectfully, 
Giffels Webster  

 
 
     

Joe Tangari, AICP  Rod Arroyo, AICP 
Senior Planner    Secretary | Partner 
       
 
 

 























SITE PLAN 62-8-2021 

 

Approval: I move that Site Plan 62-8-2021, dated August 18, 2021, submitted by 

David Jappaya, be approved because it appears to meet all applicable 

requirements of the Zoning Chapter. Subject to the following conditions: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Denial: I move that approval of Site Plan 62-8-2021, dated August 18, 2021, 

submitted by David Jappaya, be denied for the following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SP 62-8-2021
W 9 Mile Rd

Shiawassee Rd

Mi
dd

leb
elt

 Rd
E S

t
F S

t
G 

St

Alb
ion

Av
e

Pu
rd

ue
 A

ve

H S
t

Fairchild Ave

Astor St

Shiawassee Rd

Alb
ion

 A
ve

Tu
lan

e A
ve

Gl
en

m
oo

r H
eig

h t
sD

r

Co
lga

te
 St

Alb
ion

 A
ve

Pu
rd

ue
 A

ve

Co
lga

te
 St

Tu
lan

e A
ve

P1

B3

LI1

OS1

RC3

P1

RA4

B1

P1

OS1
B1

RA4

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 240

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Minor roads

Zoning Districts
Zoning Districts

B-1 Local Business District
B-3 General Business District
LI-1 Light Industrial District
OS-1 Office Service District

P-1 Vehicular Parking District
RA-4 One Family Residential District
RC-3 Multiple Family Residential

Aerials-2020
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Site Plan 62-8-2021
29820 Nine Mile Rd., 26-482-001
Parking lot improvement for existing site in LI-1



SP 62-8-2021

W 9 Mile Rd

Shiawassee Rd

O
SOURCE: City of Farmington Hills, 2021
Oakland County GIS, 2021

0 80

FEET

DISCLAIMER: Although the information provided by this map is
believed to be reliable, its accuracy is not warranted in any way.  
The City of Farmington Hills assumes no liability for any claims
arising from the use of this map.

Tax parcel
Aerials-2020
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Site Plan 62-8-2021
29820 Nine Mile Rd., 26-482-001
Parking lot improvement for existing site in LI-1



 
 

 28 W. Adams, Suite 1200  |  Detroit, Michigan  48226  |  (313) 962-4442   
www.GiffelsWebster.com 

September 7, 2021 
 
Farmington Hills Planning Commission 
31555 W 11 Mile Rd 
Farmington Hills, MI 48336 
 

Site Plan Review 
 
Case:   SP 62-8-2021 (Revised) 
Site:    22-23-26-482-001; 0.32 acres 
Applicant:  29820 Nine Mile 
Plan Date:  8/10/2021 
Zoning:   LI-1, Light Industrial 
 
We have completed a review of the application for site plan approval and a summary of our findings is 
below. Items in bold require specific action.  Items in italics can be addressed administratively.   
 

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  2 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS  
Existing Conditions 
1. Zoning. The parcel is zoned LI-1, Light Industrial.  

2. Existing site.  The site is approximately 0.32 acres and is a triangle at the northwest corner of Nine 
Mile and Shiawassee. It is developed with two buildings and a small shed. The larger building is 2,400 
square feet, and the smaller one is 720 square feet. The property is currently unoccupied.  

The site’s property lines are not quite aligned with the locations of various right-of-way elements, and 
the smaller building is not located entirely on the property at present. As this is an existing 
nonconformity, and the buildings are not proposed to be altered, it can be allowed to remain as is.      

3. Adjacent properties.  

Direction Zoning Land Use 
North OS-1 Office/vacant 
East LI-1 Industrial 
South B-3 Commercial 
West RA-4 Single Family  

 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  3 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

4. Site configuration and access.  The site has driveway access only to Nine Mile at present, and this is 
not proposed to changed. The driveway is gated.  

 
Site Plan & Use: 
1. Summary of Proposal. The applicant is proposing to change the informal development of the grounds, 

installing a paved parking lot, screen wall, and dumpster enclosure, removing the shed and some of 
the fencing, repurposing the buildings for a primary caregiver grow facility, and adding new 
landscaping to replace the existing overgrowth. 

2. Dimensional Standards (B-3 district). The applicant is not proposing structural changes to the 
buildings, though the facades will be re-done.  

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Front Yard Setback (34-
3.1.29.E.) 50 ft min. (9 Mile) 0 ft/16.4 ft - Existing 

nonconformity 

Yard landscaping  
(34-3.5.2.A) 

For all uses except one-family 
detached residential units, 
landscaping of all yards abutting a 
street shall be provided 

See landscaping comments 
below. 

Building Height 50 feet 19 feet 

Parking in the Front yard  
(34-3.5.2.S) Required parking not permitted in 

required front yard 
“Off-street parking for visitors, over and 
above the number of spaces required 
under Section 34-5.2, may be permitted 
within the required front yard provided 
that such off-street parking is not located 
within twenty (20) feet of the front lot line 
and provided further that the number of 
such spaces does not equal more than ten 
(10) percent of the total number of spaces 
required.” 

Pavement is proposed to a 
portion of the front property line 
on the plan; a portion of this area 
will function as maneuvering lane 
for the three parking spaces in the 
middle of the site. This parking is 
located partly within the front 
yard setback. It is behind the 
building line of both buildings.  
Also, it is not above the number 
of spaces required and equals 
more than 10% of total required 
spaces. Variance required.   

Setback from any 
residential district (34-
3.1.29.E.) 

50 feet. 17.4 ft – existing nonconformity 

Setback from any side 
street  
(34-3.5.2.M) 

25 ft min.  (Shiawassee) 2.8 ft/approx. 20 ft - Existing 
nonconformity 

Loading space (34-
3.5.2.N) 

1 loading space required @ 500 sq 
ft No loading space identified 

Rooftop equipment (34-
3.5.2.U.) 

Rooftop equipment shall be 
screened in accordance with 
Section 34-5.17. 

No information provided; 
buildings do not currently have 
visible rooftop equipment.   



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  4 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Landscape area abutting 
street or freeway (34-
3.5.2.V.) A landscaped area not less than ten 

(10) feet deep 

Provided in some places and not 
others. A variance is required to 
permit the parking area to 
encroach within ten feet of the 
Shiawassee Road right-of-way.  

 

3. Dumpster (34-5.1.2.D). 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Location Rear yard or interior side yard 

The dumpster enclosure meets 
the standards of Section 34-
5.1.2.D. It is located between 
the two buildings. It is not in a 
rear yard or interior side yard. 

Screening Permanent building wall or earth 
mound not less than 6 feet or 1 foot 
above the enclosed dumpster 
whichever is greater 

Setback 20 feet from any residential property 
4. Mechanical Equipment (34-5.1.4.D). Mechanical equipment is not addressed on the plan.  

5. Fences (34-5.12.2.) and Walls (34-5.15.) Fences, not to exceed eight (8) feet in height, may be located 
within any yard except the minimum front yard setback or the minimum setback of a yard abutting a 
street.  Fences shall not contain barbed wire or razor wire. The site has an existing 6-foot metal fence 
along the Nine Mile frontage that is proposed to remain—this is a nonconforming fence located within 
the required setback. The fence is also present along the Shiawassee right-of-way. All barbed wire 
should be removed. The fence along the western property line is proposed to be replaced with a six-
foot masonry screen wall. While this wall meets the requirements of Section 34-5.15, we note that 
the four trees along the west property line that are proposed to be saved will be up against the wall, 
and care will need to be taken not to kill or damage them during installation; these trees will require 
replacements if they are removed to aid wall installation. Typically, the ordinance requires 
deciduous trees to be placed every 30 feet on the near side of a screen wall; this would require five 
trees on this site. The planning commission should make a determination as to whether the four 
preserved trees and the evergreen proposed at the northwest corner of the site combine to meet 
this standard.  

6. Minimum parking (34-5.2.11.E.i). The requirement for industrial uses is as follows: Three (3) plus one 
(1) for every one and one-half (1 1/2) employees in the largest working shift, or three (3) plus one (1) 
for each five hundred fifty (550) square feet of usable floor area, whichever is the greater. The floor 
plans included propose only growing areas, plus a small lobby and bathroom. Total floor area is 1,320 
square feet. Based on 80% of square footage as usable floor area (1,056 square feet), five spaces are 
required. Five spaces are provided. The total number of off-street parking spaces required by this 
chapter shall be increased by one (1) for uses requiring twenty-five (25) parking spaces or less. 

7. Off-street parking dimensions (34-5.3.3.A & B.). The spaces meet the minimum requirements for 
parking spaces.  

  



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  5 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 

Maneuvering lane width 20 ft.  

19.9 ft at narrowest; the 
sidewalk here should be 
adjusted to provide the 
full 20 feet.  

Parking space width 9 ft.  9 ft.  

Parking space length 

20 ft.  for minimum required 
(May include a maximum two-foot 
unobstructed vehicle overhang area at the 
front of the parking space.) 
 
17 ft. for additional parking 
(May include a maximum one-foot 
unobstructed vehicle overhang area at the 
front of the parking space) 

20 ft/18 ft w/ overhang 

 

8. Barrier Free Parking. One van accessible space is proposed.  

9. Acceleration-Deceleration-Passing Lanes (34-5.6.2.) Driveways providing ingress and egress to all 
three-lane paved major or secondary thoroughfares shall be provided with paved acceleration and 
deceleration lanes. If in the opinion of the director of public services no useful purpose would be 
served or if unusual difficulty would be encountered by reason of grade changes, intersections, 
bridges, or other land restrictions, the director may waive or modify the requirements of this section. 
We defer to engineering to address this issue.  

10. Use. The use is identified as a “grow facility.” The site plan notes that this is a cannabis grow facility 
for a primary caregiver. Section 34-4.57.D. calls out a series of Use Standards for this use.  This 
application does not provide the details necessary to determine compliance.  A written response 
shall be provided to document how standards are proposed to be met, and the site plan and floor 
plans shall contain appropriate details to confirm compliance. The applicant should also explain 
why the floor plans label the grow rooms in the two buildings “vegetable room” and “flower room.” 

11. Building. The façades of both buildings are proposed to be redone, with a thin face brick over the 
existing CMU.  

12. Corner Clearance (34-5.10). No change to the existing. Corner clearance triangles should be indicated 
on the plan, though it appears that the driveway is compliant.  

13. Landscape Development (34-5.14). The existing site is developed such that there is no well-defined 
separation between parking, storage, and open space areas. This plan establishes clear landscaping 
areas.  

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Minimum distance from 
the property line  
(34-5.14.C.ii) 

4 ft from the property line 
for trees and large shrubs 

Compliant or existing 
nonconforming 

Minimum parking lot 
island area 

Minimum of 180 square feet; 3 feet 
minimum radius at the trunk of the 
tree 

No islands provided 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  6 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 

Cost estimate  Not required Provided 

Minimum size and 
spacing requirements 
(34-5.14.F) 

Size Center to center 
distance (max)  

(Height/width) groupings rows  

• Evergreen Trees 8 ft. height 20 ft.  12 ft.  Plans say 3” caliper 

• Narrow Evergreen 
Trees 

5 ft. height 10 ft.  5 ft.  Standard is met 

• Large Shrubs 30 in. height 10 ft.  5 ft.  Standard is met 
• Small Shrubs 24 in. width 4 ft. 4 ft. Standard is met 

• Large Deciduous 3 in. caliper 30 ft.  - Standard is met 

• Small deciduous trees 2 in. caliper 15 ft.  - None proposed 

• Hedge shrubs 24 in. height 3 ft.  3 ft.  Medium shrubs proposed in lieu 

Canopy Trees Shall be large deciduous. PC may 
permit large evergreens 

4 lindens provided on Nine Mile; 
3 spruces along Shiawassee 

Minimum number of 
parking lot trees (34-
5.14.4.C) 

1 per every 2,800 square feet of 
paved surface area 

6,880 sq ft of paved area = 2 
required trees. It is not clear 
which trees are intended to fulfill 
this requirement. 

Parking lot screening 
from public thoroughfare 
(34-5.14.5) 

A planted hedge of small shrubs, or 
A masonry wall or berm of 2 feet high 

Provided along Shiawassee 
(evergreen shrubs in combination 
with evergreen trees) 

Wall or Berm (34-5.15) Required when abutting a residential 
district. (See 34-5.15) Provided; see item 5 above 

Tree replacement (34-
5.18) 

Four regulated trees documented; 
none proposed to be removed. N/A 

14. Lighting (Section 34-5.16).  

a. Operation hours (34-5.16.3.B.v.). The following notes must be added to or addressed on the plan; 
it is unclear from the existing plans whether these standards are met. The applicant should clarify 
as to how these standards are met.  

i. Exterior lighting shall not operate during daylight hours.  

ii. Building façade and landscape lighting shall be turned off between midnight or one hour after 
close of business, whichever is later, and 6:00am or opening, whichever is earlier.  

iii. All other exterior lighting shall be reduced to no greater than 70% of maximum from midnight 
or one hour after close of business, whichever is later, and 6:00am or opening, whichever is 
earlier.  

iv. Use of occupancy sensors to turn off or reduce lighting within 15 minutes of zero occupancy 
is recommended. 

b.  Illumination Levels 



Date: 9/7/2021   
Project: 62-8-2021; 29820 Nine Mile; SPR1 

Page:  7 
 

 
 

 

 
 

www.GiffelsWebster.com 
 

Item Required Proposed/Comments 
Maximum height (34-
5.16.3.A.) 

35 feet maximum 18 ft.  

Building Lighting  
(34-5.16.3.A. iii.) 

Relevant building elevation 
drawings showing all fixtures 
and the portions of the walls to 
be illuminated 

None proposed  

Average to minimum 
illumination ratio (34-
5.16.3.C) 

4:1 17:1 – not compliant 

Maximum illumination at 
the property line 

0.3 fc The lighting plan must be 
revised. Light levels along west 
wall exceed 0.3 fc; figures not 
provided for sliver of land on 
west side of wall. More info 
needed. 

Illumination Levels- 
Hardscape areas (e.g., 
parking areas, sidewalks) 

2.5 lumens per sq ft of 
hardscape area 

Compliant 

Illumination Levels Building 
Entrances – within 20 ft of 
door 

2,000 lumens per door Compliant 

 
15. Additional lighting standards for sites abutting a residential district (Sec. 34-5.16.3.B.iii.)  

a. No direct light source shall be visible at the property line (adjacent to residential) at ground level. 
This standard appears to be met.   

b. Maximum illumination at the property line shall not exceed one-third (1/3) foot-candle. Light 
levels along the west wall exceed 0.3 fc.  Verify other property lines, as it appears that light 
levels at the other property lines will also exceed 0.3 fc. 

c. All fixtures mounted within 50 feet of a residential property line or public right-of-way boundary 
shall be fitted with a shielding reflector on the side facing the residential property line or public 
right-of-way.  This needs to be documented. 

16. Pedestrian Connection (Sec. 34-5.19). No pedestrian connections to the public sidewalk are 
proposed at this time.   

 
We are available to answer questions.  
 
Respectfully, 
Giffels Webster  

 
     

 
Sri Ravali Komaragiri, AICP Joe Tangari, AICP  Rod Arroyo, AICP 
LEED Green Associate  Senior Planner    Secretary | Partner 
Senior Planner       











ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT 2, 2021 

I move that Zoning Text Amendment 2, 2021, amending the definition of “Family” contained in 

Article 34-2.0 “Definitions”, and various other associated sections of Chapter 34 “Zoning” of the 

Code of Ordinances be set for public hearing by the Planning Commission at the October 21, 

2021 meeting. 

 



      

 

INTEROFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

DATE: September 7, 2021 

 

TO:  Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Jason Baloga, Fire Marshal 

 

SUBJECT: Site Plan 62-8-2021 (29820 Nine Mile) 

   

 

The Fire Department has no objection to approval of this site plan contingent upon 

compliance with the following requirements: 

 

1. Existing site does not meet 50’ turning radius requirement.  Please contact the  

Fire Marshal to discuss Alternate Protection provisions outlined in Section 12-

11(4). 

 

2. Gates shall meet International Fire Code and Fire Prevention Ordinance  

requirements. 

 

3. Please verity the site meets Chapter 12, Section 12-11(2) of the City Code.  Plans  

are not of sufficient detail to make this determination. 

 

4. Building shall be maintained in accordance with minimum Fire Prevention Code  

requirements. 
 

 

 

 

                                                                                                 
Jason Baloga, Fire Marshal 

                                                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 
JB/al 





















   DRAFT 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING/REGULAR MEETING 

31555 W ELEVEN MILE ROAD 

FARMINGTON HILLS, MICHIGAN 

AUGUST 19, 2021, 7:30 P.M. 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

The Planning Commission Regular Meeting was called to order by Chair Stimson at 7:30 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

  

Commissioners Present:  Brickner, Orr, Mantey, Stimson, Trafelet, Turner, 

   

Commissioners Absent:   Countegan, Schwartz, Varga 

 

Others Present: City Planner Stec, City Attorney Saarela, Planning Consultant Arroyo,  

  Staff engineers Dawkins, Crimmins, and Sonck 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

MOTION by Brickner, support by Orr, to approve the agenda as published. 

 

MOTION carried unanimously by voice vote. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

A.  PUD PLAN 3, 2021  

  LOCATION:   32680 Northwestern Hwy. 

  PARCEL I.D.:   23-02-126-130 

  PROPOSAL:   PUD Plan for a five story, 202 unit multiple family development 

       in a B-2 Community Business District, and B-3 General  

       Business District 

  ACTION REQUESTED:  Recommendation to City Council   

APPLICANT:   NWH Holdings, LLC, Robert Asmar 

  OWNER:    NWH Holdings, LLC 

        

Referencing his August 11, 2021 written comments, Planning Consultant Tangari gave the background 

and review for this request for recommendation to City Council of a PUD Plan for a five-story, 202 unit 

multiple family development as advertised.  

 

The 5.53 acre site is currently zoned a mix of B-2 and B-3, and is mostly vacant, having been formerly 

occupied by all or parts of several commercial buildings. The site has no wetlands or other notable 

features. 

 

Adjacent properties and uses include senior housing to the north (B-2 with PUD), commercial multi-

family to the east (B-3/RC-2 multi-family), commercial to the south (B-3), and commercial also to the 

west ( B-2/B-3 with PUD).  

 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 2 

  
The site is proposed to be accessed from a single driveway, shared with the Northpoint PUD, which 

occupies the land to the west and north. 

 

Regarding PUD qualification: 

 

Under Section 34-3.20.2, the Planning Commission may make a determination that the site qualifies for a 

PUD based on certain criteria and procedures. At its meeting on February 18, 2021, the Planning 

Commission granted preliminary PUD qualification approval to the site, citing the plan’s compliance with 

objective viii of Section 34-3.20.2.E. At the time, Planning Commissioners generally did not take issue 

with the proposed use, but several expressed reservations about the scale of the use, particularly its 

density and height.  

 

The PUD application was originally proposed to amend the previously approved Northpoint PUD that 

had incorporated all three buildings (senior living, climate-controlled storage and apartments) into the 

same PUD. The application has since been separated into a distinct PUD of its own, with access across 

the other PUD. The applicant is seeking final PUD qualification, but is not seeking site plan approval 

concurrent with final qualification.  

 

Regarding the criteria for qualifications:   

A. The PUD option may be effectuated in any zoning district. 

B. The use of this option shall not be for the sole purpose of avoiding the applicable zoning  

requirements. The proposed use—apartments—is not permitted in the B-2 or B-3 districts, though 

the portion of the site zoned B-2 is planned for multiple-family residential on the Future Land 

Use map.  

C. The PUD shall not be utilized in situations where the same land use objectives can be 

accomplished by the application of conventional zoning provisions or standards. The applicant is 

proposing significantly more density than is permitted in any of the three RC multiple-family 

districts (nearly twice the permitted density of the RC-3 district). The applicant’s narrative 

provides rationale behind the proposed density, essentially averring that a denser development 

serves as a step-down to the RC-2 district to the east from the commercial uses and regional 

thoroughfare to the south and east.  

D. The Planned Unit Development option may be effectuated only when the proposed land use will 

not materially add service and facility loads beyond those contemplated in the Future Land Use 

Plan unless the proponent can demonstrate to the sole satisfaction of the city that such added 

loads will be accommodated or mitigated by the proponent as part of the Planned Unit 

Development. The number of apartment units proposed on the site clearly exceeds the number of 

single-family units that could be built under other multi-family zoning; the site’s current 

commercial designation (primarily B-2) supports uses with a wide array of traffic demands. 

Nevertheless, this is a large number of units. The applicant has provided a traffic study that needs 

to be updated; Engineering will review its findings. The complex would utilize the same access 

point to Northwestern Highway as the rest of the Northpoint PUD; there is not a vehicular 

connection from the apartments to 14 Mile or the senior housing parking lot.  

E. The Planned Unit Development must meet, as a minimum, one of 8 objectives of the City as 

listed in this section of the ordinance. The applicants feel they have met the following:  

i. To permanently preserve open space or natural features because of their exceptional 

characteristics or because they can provide a permanent transition or buffer between land 

uses. 

Open space is primarily found on the site in the courtyard common, though the narrative 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 3 

  
calls attention to an intent to create a dense buffer to the east and utilize green roofs and 

landscaping on the building’s various tiers to mitigate its overall impact.  

ii. To permanently establish land use patterns which are compatible or which will protect 

existing or planned uses. 

The Future Land Use map does identify the northern portion of this property as multiple- 

family residential. As the Planning Commission considers the proposed use’s compatibility 

with surrounding uses, the proposed scale of the use should feature prominently in the 

discussion.  

v. To guarantee the provision of a public improvement which could not otherwise be  

required that would further the public health, safety, or welfare, protect existing or future uses 

from the impact of a proposed use, or alleviate an existing or potential problem relating to 

public facilities. 

The applicant’s narrative cites the access management benefit of the single driveway to 

Northwestern Highway, versus the separate driveways that previously served the individual 

commercial sites here.  

 vi. To promote the goals and objectives of the Master Plan for Land Use.  

The future land use map calls for multiple-family residential use on the B-2 portion of the 

property, leaving a commercial liner along Northwestern Highway. The proposed project 

introduces this use, though at a higher density than permitted elsewhere in the city.  

vii. To foster the aesthetic appearance of the city through quality building design and site 

development, the provision of trees and landscaping beyond minimum requirements; the 

preservation of unique and/or historic sites or structures; and the provision of open space or 

other desirable features of a site beyond minimum requirements.  

The applicant notes that the building is designed to create a gateway appearance for the city, 

fosters further walkability in the area, and is designed not to look monolithic (some 

conceptual illustrations were provided, though the Planning Commission is not making any 

decision on these or any other aspect of the site plan at this time). Building materials are also 

cited toward meeting this objective. If this PUD is approved, the PUD Agreement should 

include reference to proposed exemplary design and materials (including brick masonry and 

fiber cement products) that are proposed and require that they be a part of the development.  

viii. To bring about redevelopment of sites where an orderly change of use is determined to be 

desirable.  

The applicant’s narrative calls attention to the large number of commercial buildings in the 

area that are not occupied, or listed for lease or sale, noting that an influx of residents to the 

area would increase the pool of potential patrons for remaining businesses.  

 

At the preliminary qualification stage, the motion to grant preliminary qualification cited only 

objective viii. 

 

F. The PUD shall not be allowed solely as a means of increasing density or as a substitute for a 

variance request; such objectives should be pursued through the normal zoning process by 

requesting a zoning change or variance. 

An increase in density is certainly sought by the applicant. Given that the proposed use is not 

permitted in the underlying district, it appears that the request is not made solely to avoid a 

variance. However, several deviations from ordinance standards would be requested to facilitate 

the conceptual plan. The applicant also proposes to extend a neighboring PUD.  

G. All submission requirements were met, and as noted above, the Planning Commission granted 

preliminary qualification on February 18, 2021. 

 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 4 

  
Regarding conceptual site plan and use: 

1. Summary of Proposed Use. The applicant is proposing to construct a 200-unit apartment building 

around a large courtyard common. Access to the site would be from Northwestern Highway, via the 

same driveway that serves Northpoint Storage. The ground floor of the five-story building is devoted 

to indoor parking, with all living units on the floors above. A small portion of a bank of 9 parking 

spaces on the west side of the PUD encroaches on the neighboring PUD. The plans still refer to 202 

units in several places; this must be corrected throughout the submission package.  

2. Density. The applicant proposes 200 units, and number of each type has been adjusted to 101 one-

bedroom units, 93 two-bedroom units, and 6 three-bedroom units. The number of one-bedroom units 

has been decreased since the original submission, in favor of more two- bedroom units. The following 

densities are permitted under conventional zoning:  

RC-1, 1,900 lot area/square feet, 126 rooms 

RC-2, 1,400 lot area/square feet, 172 rooms 

RC-3, 1.060 lot area/square feet, 230 rooms 

 The proposed density is more than twice that of the densest multiple-family district in the City. 

3. Master Plan. The master plan’s Future Land Use map designates the portion of the site zoned B-2 as 

multiple-family residential, and the portion zoned B-3 as non-center-type business. The B-3 portion 

of the property is consistent with this designation; the B-2 portion is not. The property is not 

addressed on the residential density map, though it is adjacent to a high-density area, which is 

described as consistent with the RC districts. The site is not part of any special planning area.  

 

Non-Center-Type Business is described as follows in the Master Plan: “Non-Center Type Business 

uses are those that are not compatible with shopping centers and that could have an undesirable 

impact on abutting residential areas. They include most automobile-oriented uses and outdoor uses; 

e.g. those that have the greatest impact beyond their boundaries in terms of either traffic generation, 

noise or appearance. These are the uses that are permitted within the B-3 General Business District.” 

Generally speaking, the category anticipates stand-alone sites rather than a planned, walkable 

environment.  
4. Parking standards are met. 

5. Trees and Preliminary Landscaping. The preliminary landscaping plan shows standards are met. 

 

To summarize, the following deviations are requested as part of this PUD request: 

1. Height: Proposed maximum height is 69 feet, where 50 feet is permitted in the underlying district (a 

deviation of 19 feet).  

2. East side setback (to residential): 54.07 feet is proposed where the underlying district requires 75 feet 

(a deviation of 20.93 feet). The last request was for a 39.24 foot setback. The applicants had moved a 

bank of parking from the west side of the plan to the east side, thereby gaining some setback space, 

although it still did not meet ordinance standards.  

3. Density. The plan does not specify a base district for density standards. 505 rooms are proposed; the 

maximum number of rooms permitted in the RC-3 district is 230 (a deviation of 275 rooms).  

 

Planning Consultant Tangari concluded his review. 

 

In response to questions from Commissioner Orr, Planning Consultant Tangari gave the following 

information: 

• The property line would be the same as the PUD line on the western side of the building/property. 

• Regarding setbacks on the western side, the B-2 District had a 20 foot side yard setback, and the B-3 

District had a 10 foot side yard setback. 

 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 5 

  
Commissioner Orr pointed out that there was no problem meeting setbacks on the west side of the PUD. 

The only challenge was meeting the 75-foot setback on the east side. If the applicant shifted the building, 

and removed the parking that was infringing on the PUD boundary as well as the parking to the 

immediate north of those spaces, and placed that parking on the east side, the 75-foot setback on the east 

could be achieved. There would also be more room on the west for enhanced landscaping, since the 

driveway on the west side of the building could be eliminated. 

 

Commissioner Brickner asked about the August 12, 2021 letter from the Fire Marshal, which stated: 

Generally, dead-end drives greater than 100’ are not allowed; secondary Emergency Access shall be 

provided at main entrance where curb has been added. With consideration of this fact, the 

Farmington Hills Fire Department would be unable to provide proper life safety and fire services to 

this facility. 

 

City Planner Stec said that after clarification of the plans, this issue had been resolved. The plans did 

show complete access around the building.  

 

In response to questions from Commissioner Mantey, Planning Consultant Tangari said that 403 parking 

spaces were required and 403 were provided. Parking space requirements were calculated based on the 

number of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom units. 

 

Keith Phillips, The Think Shop Architects, 1420 Washington Blvd, Suite 430, Detroit, was present on 

behalf of this application for a recommendation to City Council for PUD Plan 3, 2021. 

 

Mr. Phillips reviewed changes to the plan since they had last met with the Planning Commission: 

• Increased setback on the east side of the property, providing more parking as well as providing 

more landscaping within that parking area.  

• Reduced the height of the building to under 69 feet.  

• Reduced footprint of the overall building. Integrated a more approachable way to get into the 

site.  

• Maintained the features that were originally provided in the building.  

• Provided a true benefit in decreased parking from any commercial retail space that could be built 

on the site.  

• Increased setback on the east side, reducing the overall impact.  

• Overall: reduced height, footprint; increased east side setback. 

 

Mr. Phillips said this development provided for significant green space, both inside and outside the 

project. The apartment building offered the type of development trending in the area, including in West 

Bloomfield. Density was needed in order to provide a vibrant community for the target demographic. 

 

Commissioner Mantey asked if the development needed as much parking as was required. 

 

Mr. Phillips said they had tried to minimize the impact of the parking associated with this development. 

The majority of the parking was placed under the building. Some surface parking was still needed for 

guests. He also noted that a buffer was needed along Northwestern Highway.  

 

Commissioner Mantey suggested that he would be open to reducing the number of parking spaces if the 

applicants provided significant bicycle storage in the covered garage space, and also provided a dedicated 

space for walking dogs, especially since this development was pet-friendly. 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 6 

  
 

In response to questions from the Commission, Mr. Phillips gave the following information: 

• This would be a masonry-clad structure with long-term composite material used as siding. There 

would be concrete up to the parking deck. Parking under the structure would be at grade, forming 

the 1st floor of the building. 

• Any rooftop equipment would be shielded. Vertical unit ventilators would most likely be used for 

the individual units. 

• Putting the parking underground was cost-prohibitive, and not being considered. The building 

would use footings, as opposed to a full foundation. 

 

The Commission made the following suggestions regarding sustainability: 

• Electric vehicle charging stations should be included in the 1st floor parking structure. 

• The applicants should research the possibility of putting solar panels on the roof.  

 

Commissioner Orr asked if a motion to recommend could include a condition to move the parking to the 

east of the of the building, as described this evening, thus allowing the building to meet the 75-foot east 

setback.  

 

City Planner Stec said a requirement to meet the 75-foot setback was a significant change. If the 

Commission supported requiring that change, perhaps a motion to postpone would be the best action to 

take. 

 

Chair Stimson supported voting on the request this evening. 

 

Commissioner Trafelet said he had been to the site multiple times. He could not support the proposed 

building at this location. He felt the building was too tall, and resulted in too much density. He felt the 

building would result in a monolithic appearance at that corner. 

 

Chair Stimson said he was not in favor of this proposal. At this time he felt he would vote against the 

proposal even if the building were shifted. He could not support the proposed density and height. The 

proposal was for 219% greater density than that allowed in the City’s most dense district, the RC-3 

District. 

 

Commissioner Mantey suggested that the applicants construct the parking garage below grade, and 

thereby reduce the height of the building by one story. Other Commissioners felt this would still leave an 

unacceptable density level. 

 

Chair Stimson said that density should be no greater than that allowed in the RC-3 district, and the height 

should be no more than 4 stories. Commissioner Trafelet agreed. 

 

Commissioner Brickner pointed out that the purpose of a PUD could not be to avoid zoning ordinance 

standards. While he thought residential would be a good use at this location, a 5 story, dense apartment 

building appeared to be using the PUD development tool to avoid ordinance standards. Additionally, 

there was nothing like this proposed building anywhere in  Farmington Hills. This would result in too 

many people concentrated in a small area. He would not support the proposal due to the requested density 

and the apparent ordinance avoidance. 

 

MOTION by Orr, support by Trafelet, to postpone action on PUD Plan 3, 2021 to a future meeting, to 

allow the applicant time to make the following suggested revisions to the plan: 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 7 

  

• As described during tonight’s discussion, parking on the west side of the building be moved to 

the east side, in order to shift the building further west to increase the eastern side yard setback so 

as to meet ordinance requirements. 

• Decrease the height of the building to 4 stories 

• Reduce the density to meet RC-3 density standards. 

 

Commissioner Mantey said while he would like to see the height decreased, he did not agree with the 

requirement to meet RC-3 density standards. However, because it was apparent the applicant did not have 

the votes this evening to recommend this proposal to Council, he would support the motion. 

 

Motion carried 5-1 (Brickner opposed). 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

A. Resolution Regarding Recording, Broadcasting, and Livestreaming of Meetings and Posting 

of Agenda Materials 

 

City Planner Stec said that City Council was recommending making meetings and meeting materials 

more accessible to the public, by broadcasting all meetings live, and posting meeting materials on the 

City’s website.  

 

After brief discussion the following motion was offered: 

 

MOTION by Brickner, support by Mantey, that the Planning Commission approve RESOLUTION 

REGARDING RECORDING, BROADCASTING, AND LIVESTREAMING OF MEETINGS AND 

POSTING OF AGENDA MATERIAL, as submitted this evening. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES July 15, 2021 

 

MOTION by Brickner, support by Turner, to amend and approve the minutes of the July 15, 2021 

meeting as follows. 

 

• Page 5, end of 5th paragraph: . . . and 14 Mile Road. the access road. 

• Page 5, after 5th paragraph, insert comments by Planning Consultant Arroyo giving his response 

to moving the building to the west and placing parking on the east, to meet the setback 

requirements on the east. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT   

 

None 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS  

• DTE will be speaking to City Council regarding recent outages. Commissioner Mantey asked that 

priority be given to people on septic systems. 



City of Farmington Hills         DRAFT 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

August 19, 2021 

Page 8 

  

• Joint meeting with City Council on September 20. 

• City Planner Stec updated the Commission on projects previously approved by the Commission: 

- The Pulte cluster project at 38500 W. 9 Mile Road received a motion of non-approval by City 

Council. The applicant will be returning to Council with fewer units and changed site plan. 

- Sarah Fisher project still going through the process with City Council; with emphasis on working 

through the residential component, now being developed by Robertson Brothers.  

- Radisson motel conversion to senior living also going through process with Council, with 

changes to provide more green space. 

- Rose PUD behind Costick Center still negotiating the PUD Agreement, which is complicated due 

to the land and use issues involved.  

- Senior living approved for the Ginopolis site stalled. City is enforcing site maintenance. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION by Orr, support by Trafelet, to adjourn the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 

 

MOTION carried unanimously. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John Trafelet 

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

/cem 

 

 

 

 

 



   Approved 08-19-2021 

 
MINUTES 

CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING/REGULAR MEETING 

31555 W ELEVEN MILE ROAD 
FARMINGTON HILLS, MICHIGAN 

JULY 15, 2021, 7:30 P.M. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
The Planning Commission Regular Meeting was called to order by Chair Stimson at 7:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
Commissioners Present:  Brickner, Countegan, Orr, Mantey, Schwartz, Stimson, Trafelet, Turner, 
  Varga 
   
Commissioners Absent:   None 
 
Others Present: City Planner Stec, City Attorney Schultz, Planning Consultant Arroyo,  
  Staff engineers Dawkins, Crimmins, and Sonck 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Countegan, support by Trafelet, to approve the agenda as published. 
 
MOTION carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A.  PUD PLAN 3, 2021  

  LOCATION:   32680 Northwestern Hwy. 
  PARCEL I.D.:   23-02-126-130 
  PROPOSAL:   PUD Plan for a five story, 202 unit multiple family development 
       in a B-2 Community Business District, and B-3 General  
       Business District 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  Recommendation to City Council   

APPLICANT:   NWH Holdings, LLC, Robert Asmar 
  OWNER:    NWH Holdings, LLC 
        

Keith Phillips, The Think Shop Architects, 1420 Washington Blvd, Suite 430, Detroit, was present on 
behalf of this application for a recommendation to City Council for PUD Plan 3, 2021, a five story, 202 
unit multiple family development at 32680 Northwestern Highway. Jim Butler, PEA Group, 2430 
Rochester Ct Suite 100, Troy, was also present, as was the owner, Robert Asmar. 
 
Mr. Phillips said that at this location at 14 Mile Road and Orchard Lake Road, the proposed development 
– “Stonefield” – would provide a gateway feature to Farmington Hills. The 202 unit building was an 
extension to the walkability within the local area, that allowed for transition for multiple zoning 
platforms. The increase in population should promote growth in the use of local businesses, contribute to 
the tax base, while minimally impacting traffic.  
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 2 
  
Mr. Phillips overviewed the design of the building, which provided traditional components of residential 
architecture with amenities required by modern residents. The project included a mix of hip and flat roof 
styles, a covered main entry at the northwestern corner, and allowed for natural light in the central 
courtyard. Each façade of the building was broken up into smaller elements to reflect the human scale of 
the residential community.  
 
Stonefield would incorporate dynamic landscape design, including a greenspace buffer area utilizing 
deciduous and evergreen plantings along the eastern portion adjacent to the Country Glens development. 
The commons courtyards on the second level will present a high-density approach to landscape design, 
utilizing multi-tiered landscape features. Multiple formats of renewable technology would be used, 
including green roof design techniques and solar approaches at both the courtyard level and the rooftop 
structures. Electric vehicle charging stations would be placed around the garage level structure with built-
in flexibility that will provide for future EV charging expansion, up to 100% capacity. 
 
The building’s exterior masonry and fiber cement façade will consist of durable, low-maintenance 
materials that complement the buildings in the surrounding area. The building’s units will consist of one, 
two, and three-bedroom units varying from 850-1,500 square feet as follows: 
 One-bedroom, 48%, 98 units 
 Two-bedroom, 46%, 98 units 
 Three-bedroom, 6%, 6 units 
 
This combination of units is tailored toward the empty nester / young professional. The pet-friendly 
project includes a high level of amenities in the units themselves, as well as community amenities such as 
clubhouse, pool, central courtyard, fitness center, bike storage, ride share accommodations, and concierge 
services.  
 
Parking is concealed under the building. Building height is approximately 64’ tall, which is reduced from 
the original 75’ request. The building was a 4-story building atop a parking deck. 
 
Development schedule was as follows: 

• Planning, June 2021 
• Construction kick-off, beginning underground, October 2021 
• Occupancy, May 2024 

 
Mr. Phillips emphasized that a project of this scope and amenities required the density as presented. The 
impact on parking was much less than, for instance, a 50,000 square foot commercial building 
development. 
 
In response to questions from the Commission, the applicants gave the following information: 
• The main access was from a single driveway, shared with the Northpoint PUD, which occupies the 

land to the west and north. The gated access was for emergency access only. 
• A material board would be provided during site plan approval. 
• The building had been redesigned to reduce the height by 11’, by lowering floor heights and 

shortening the underground parking structure height. The height was measured per the City’s 
ordinance standards. 

• The parking was at grade, with the building on top of that. 
• The submitted traffic study had been completed during an earlier approval process for the adjacent 

PUD. A new traffic study would be completed as the current project moved forward. 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 3 
  
• The requested density was needed in order to provide this amenity-based housing development. 

Removing the 4th floor, for instance,  would require removing the parking structure, eliminating the 
ability to implement such things as green roof design, and the building itself would be much more 
stripped down in appearance and use.  

• The target population was both young professionals, including those with a smaller family, and empty 
nesters.  

• The percentage of smaller units was necessary to achieve required density. They had originally started 
with a proposal for 6 stories, which would have allowed more 2- and 3-bedroom units.  

• First floor commercial uses would have a big impact on traffic and parking; retail was parked at a 
higher rate than residential. 

• The development would provide an active, viable, vibrant space. Neighboring communities such as 
West Bloomfield were also trying to achieve this type of development. 

• The residential homes on the north side of Northwestern (in West Bloomfield) will not be able to see 
much of this development – perhaps a residential roofline, but not much more. 

• The new retirement facility just to the north of this one was 40’ tall.  
 
Commissioner Orr thought it possible the project simply needed more land. The City was also 
encouraging active, vibrant spaces, but this project seemed to him to be too dense. 
 
Referencing his July 6, 2021 written comments, Planning Consultant Arroyo gave the background and 
review for this request for PUD recommendation to City Council.  
• The 5.53 acre site is currently zoned a mix of B-2 and B-3, and is currently mostly vacant.  
• Adjacent property uses included senior housing to the north, commercial/multi-family to the east, and 

commercial to the south and west. 
• The site is proposed to be accessed from a single driveway, shared with the Northpoint PUD. 
• Regarding PUD qualification, on February 18, 2021, the Planning Commission granted preliminary 

PUD qualification approval, citing compliance with objective viii of Section 34-3.20.2.E. At the time, 
several Commissioners expressed reservations about the scale of the use, in particular its density and 
height. Also, the application had originally been proposed as an amendment to the previously 
approved Northpoint PUD. However, the application has since been separated into a distinct PUD, 
with access across the other PUD. The applicant is seeking final PUD qualification, but is not seeking 
site plan approval concurrent with final qualification.  

• The proposed multi-family residential use is not permitted in the B-2 and B-3 districts, though the 
portion of the site zoned B-2 is planned for multiple-family residential on the Future Land Use Map. 

• The proposed density is significantly denser than is permitted in any of the three RC multiple-family 
districts, being nearly twice the permitted density than the City’s densest multiple family district, the 
RC-3 district. The applicant makes the case that the proposed development serves as a step-down to 
the RC-2 district to the east from the commercial uses and regional thoroughfare to the south and 
west. 

• As mentioned by Mr. Butler, an updated traffic study would be needed for this project.  
• There was no vehicular connection from the apartments to 14 Mile or the senior housing parking lot. 
• The PUD must meet one of 8 criteria as listed in Section 34-3.20.2.E. All criteria were listed in the 

review letter. Previously the Commission found that viii was met: To bring about redevelopment of 
sites where an orderly change of use is determined to be desirable. The applicant’s original narrative 
addressed objectives i, ii, and vi.-viii. 

 
Regarding the conceptual site plan and use: 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 4 
  
• The applicant is proposing to construct a 202-unit apartment building around a large courtyard 

common area. Again, access to the site would be from Northwestern Highway, via the same driveway 
that serves Northpoint Storage to the west. 

• The applicant proposes 202 units as stated: 98 one-bedrooms, 98 two-bedrooms, 6 three-bedrooms. 
This totaled 514 rooms under the standard listed in Section 34-3.5.2.F. 230 rooms would be permitted 
in the RC-3 district. 

• The Master Plan’s Future Land Use Map  designates the portion of the site zoned B-2 as multiple-
family residential, and the portion zoned B-3 as non-center-type business. The property is not 
addressed on the residential density map, though it is adjacent to a high-density area, which is 
described as consistent with the RC districts. The site is not part of any special planning area. 
Generally speaking, non-center-type business uses would include stand-alone uses.  

• The applicant would be seeking relief from the maximum height of 50 feet, and east side setback 
standards of 75 feet.  

• Parking standards were met; more than half of the proposed parking is proposed to be within the 
building. 

• Trees and preliminary landscaping correctly account for replacement requirements. 
 
Relief from ordinance standards summary 
Per the submitted materials, the applicant is seeking relief from the following ordinance standards: 

1. Height: Proposed maximum height revised from 75.25 feet to approximately 64 feet, where 50 
feet is permitted in the underlying district. 

2. East side setback (to residential): 39.24 feet is proposed where the underlying district requires 
75 feet. 

3. Density. The plan does not specify a base district for density standards. 514 rooms are proposed; 
the maximum number of rooms permitted in the RC-3 district is 230. 

 
The applicant was also seeking for a deviation from ordinance standards regarding use, as the proposed 
multi-family residential use is not permitted in the B-2 and B-3 districts. 
 
Planning Consultant Arroyo concluded his review, and gave the following information in response to 
questions from the Commission: 
• This proposal was considered part of the redevelopment of a greater site that had been mostly vacant 

with some obsolete uses.  
• At the time of the approval of the PUD to the west, connectivity had been discussed in terms of 

utilizing a single driveway from Northwestern to all resulting developments: self-storage facility, 
senior living facility, and tonight’s proposal. The Commission had not supported multiple curb cuts 
on Northwestern, and tonight’s proposed access was consistent with that. 

• The artistic renderings did not clearly show that this building would be surrounded by parking.  
 
Chair Stimson opened the public hearing. 
 
Randy Bruce, 28730 Lake Park, strongly supported this development, which was consistent with current 
trends, would help to make Farmington Hills a destination point, which in turn would help address the 
loss of population the City was experiencing, and which would support the small businesses in this area. 
The development was far superior to a big box store coming to this property, for instance; a big box store 
could go dark at any time. 
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 5 
  
Mike Schuster, Country Glen condominiums, opposed the proposed development, which was too dense, 
too high at 5 stories, and too close to Country Glen, and would dwarf the closest Country Glen building.  
 
Mary Jo Schuster, Nova Valley, said that she and her husband owned property at Country Glen. She 
shared her husband’s concerns regarding density, height, and setback from the Country Glen property. 
Additionally, during peak hours traffic backed up on Northwestern Highway from east of 14 Mile Road to 
Orchard Lake Road.  Greater density would only make that situation worse.  
 
Chair Stimson noted that speakers Mike Schuster and Randy Bruce had each sent a letter regarding this 
proposed development. 
 
Planning Consultant Arroyo noted that while the building was 5 stories, the first level was primarily 
parking.  
 
Chair Stimson closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Orr suggested moving the building to the west and placing the parking on the east side, 
thereby increasing the distance from the building to the eastern property line. This change would also 
allow enhanced landscaping between the building and 14 Mile Road. the access road. 
 
Commissioner Orr asked if moving the building as just described would eliminate the need for a deviation 
on the east side. Planning Consultant Arroyo said he did not know if this change would completely 
eliminate the deviation, but there was no reason why this could not be explored – this change could 
potentially increase the separation on the east. 
 
Commissioner Schwartz addressed traffic flow on Northwestern Highway, in particular how residents of 
the proposed development would access Northwestern Highway. He agreed that the traffic impact needed 
to be considered. 
 
Commissioner Schwartz did not think there were any other 5 story buildings on Northwestern Highway in 
Farmington Hills. The City needed to consider whether it wanted this density and height at this location, 
which might encourage other developers to request the same thing, which would ultimately change the 
character of the Northwestern corridor. 
 
Commissioner Brickner pointed out that two nearby hotels in West Bloomfield were 5 stories high. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Countegan, Planning Consultant Arroyo said the new self-
storage center and senior living facility did not generate sufficient traffic to be a problem; these were low-
traffic uses.  
 
Commissioner Countegan pointed out that 2/3 of the greater site had low-impact traffic uses. This had 
been a blighted property for many years. He felt that the need to cover the cost of constructing a highly 
amenitized apartment community presented a compelling argument for this project to at least move to the 
next step. The issue of height was real, and had been discussed regarding various other PUD projects in 
the City. He was in favor of continuing the process to the City Council level. This proposal offered 
redevelopment in a problem area, and was consistent with rise in activity in the area. There would be 
opportunities to have further discussion regarding issues of final location, density etc. This was an 
opportunity for reinvestment in a long-time blighted area of the City. 
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 6 
  
The Commission discussed process. Several commissioners spoke in favor of redevelopment of the area 
and moving this project forward, but were still concerned regarding the location of the building so close 
to the eastern property line, and the overall density and height of the project. Some Commissioners were 
concerned that the project did not offer enough green buffer from the highway.  
 
It came out in discussion that any recommendation of approval to City Council included the concepts 
presented in the conceptual site plan, including density, height, location, and materials, and if the City 
Council approved the PUD, the resulting contract would have the concept plan as presented attached to it. 
If the Commission had reservations, now was the time to speak to those and ask for further revisions from 
the applicant. 
 
Mr. Butler said he thought they could revise the plan to shift the building to the west, as suggested.  
 
MOTION by Countegan, support by Orr, to postpone action on PUD Plan 3, 2021, submitted by NWH 
Holdings, LLC, Robert Asmar, to the August 19, 2021 Planning Commission meeting, to allow time for 
the applicant to revise the plans to increase the eastern side yard setback.  
 
Several Commissioners commented regarding their hesitation to approve the building height and density 
associated with this PUD. While not required by tonight’s motion, the applicant could make further 
changes to the plan based on the concerns they heard this evening from the Commission and the public. 
 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote. 
 
REGULAR MEETING 
 
A.  REVISED LANDSCAPE PLAN 61-5-2019 (PUD 5, 1993 ) 

  LOCATION:   South side of Twelve Mile, west of Drake Rd. 
  PARCEL I.D.:   23-17-201-013 
  PROPOSAL:   Construction staging area for new office buildings in OS-4,  
       Office Research District 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval of revised landscape plans  

APPLICANT:   JST Corporation 
  OWNER:    Perimo USA Corporation 

 
Referencing his July 6, 2021 written comments, Planning Consultant Arroyo gave the background and 
review for this application to review landscape plans in order to construct a staging area for the new office 
buildings approved for this location. The primary impact of this proposal was on land off the JST site, 
where the property owner has agreed to permit construction staging for the JST project. The staging use is 
temporary, but will require tree removal and grading. Tree removal has also been increased in a few areas 
around the regional detention pond.  
 
The site is subject to a planned unit development agreement, and per this agreement, trees are required to 
be replaced at one third of the typical rate. Originally 672 regulated trees and 34 landmark trees with a 
total dbh of 406.5 inches were proposed to be removed. Typically, this would require 672 replacements 
for regulated trees and 34 replacements for landmark trees (706 total). In this case, per the PUD 
agreement, 235 total replacement trees had been required.  
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 7 
  
However, with the new plan a total of 904 regulated trees and 205 landmark trees, for a total of 1109 
trees, were proposed to be removed, with a 1/3 replacement requirement, or 366 trees to be replaced. As 
with the initial approval, the applicant is requesting to pay into the tree fund for these trees.  
 
Plan corrections needed to be made as called out in the review letter. 
 
The Commission should discuss whether they wanted to allow the number of trees to be removed as were 
being requested for this project. The trees were being removed off site, but on PUD property, and the 
cleared area would be in effect ready for a future development. However, virtually all the trees in the 
staging area were being removed. 
 
Commissioner Mantey asked if the staging area could be placed the property to the east, where such 
extreme tree removal would not be required. 
 
In response to questions from the Commission, City Planner Stec gave the following information: 
• There were no catch basins in the tree removal area. 
• The Tree Fund was well funded at present. No major projects were scheduled that would use those 

funds. Annual tree planting projects did use the funds, but the Fund was getting funded at a higher 
rate than the City was spending it. 

 
Sam Ashley, Cunning-Limp Development Company, said they were the construction manager for this 
project. They were requesting the area shown on the submission documents to be a temporary staging 
area for the JST development on the south side of Twelve Mile, west of Drake Road (Parcel ID 23-17-
201-013).  
 
Mr. Ashley explained that the lumber from the removed trees would be kiln dried in Chicago, transported 
to Denver to be milled, and then used in the JST construction project. Also, over the last 3 years JST had 
collected seeds from the hardwoods on site, and those seeds were currently being grown in a nursery in 
Flint. When appropriate, the seeds would be replanted on site.   
 
Since the ordinance did not speak to this type of activity, the only way forward was for JST to pay into 
the tree fund. 
 
Mr. Ashley added that the adjacent parcel to the east was not affiliated with the PUD. The proposed 
staging area was affiliated with the Farmington Hills Investment Group that owned the PUD area.  
 
Commissioner Orr spoke to the slow growth of hardwoods such as Hickory and Oak – after 5 years the 
trees would only be knee high. Yet the applicants were proposing to remove all the mature growth in this 
area. It would be 40 years before the newly planted trees would be viable growth. 
 
Commissioner Orr said he walked the property today. The property to the east had much closer access to 
the construction area, had easy access, and did not require any tree removal. The JST project wanted to 
preserve as many trees as possible on their own parcel, and Commissioner Orr wanted to preserve as 
many trees as possible on any property. He asked the applicant to move the staging area to the east.  
 
Mr. Ashley said the property owner to the east was not interested in providing access for a construction 
staging area. Additionally, the trees that were being removed were in a pathway that was proposed to be a 
public drive as the PUD area developed further.  
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 8 
  
Commissioner Schwartz noted that the approved JST project was environmentally sensitive and 
extraordinarily creative. If the trees were in an area proposed for a public drive, the trees would 
eventually be removed in any event. The plan to use the wood as described and the forethought given to 
planting seeds from the trees were compelling arguments in favor of this project. 
 
MOTION by Schwartz, support by Trafelet, that the revised Landscape Plan for Site Plan 61-4-2019 
(PUD 5, 1993), dated June 16, 2021, submitted by JST Corporation, be approved because it appears to 
meet all applicable requirements of the Zoning Chapter, subject to the following conditions: 

1. A revised plan be submitted addressing the following items for administrative review: 
a. Corrections as identified in the July 6 Giffels Webster review regarding the tree inventory 

and removal list be made. 
b. An updated tree protection plan be provided. 

2. Payment into the city tree fund in lieu of planting replacement trees is acceptable. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Varga, Mr. Ashley said plans were in to the Building 
Department for the first building, and after approvals the duration of the project will be approximately 3 
years. 
 
MOTION carried 8-1 (Orr opposed). 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES June 17, 2021 
 
MOTION by Orr, support by Turner, to approve the minutes of the June 17, 2021 meeting as 
published. 
 
Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
None 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS  
• City hall bicycle racks are overgrown, and are unusable. 
• Request for discussion regarding use of federal relief funds for items in the Capital Improvements 

Plan. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by Brickner, support by Countegan, to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 p.m. 
 
MOTION carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
John Trafelet 
Planning Commission Secretary 
 
/cem 
 
 



City of Farmington Hills         Approved 08-19-2021 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2021 
Page 9 
  
 
 
 


	Sept 16, 2021 PC Agenda p.1
	Sept 16, 2021 PC Agenda p.2
	4. A. Lot Split 5, 2021
	Lot Split 5, 2021, Maps, zoning and aerial
	Lot Split 5, 2021, Giffels Webster review
	Lot Split 5, 2021, Engineering review
	Lot Split 5, 2021, Fire review
	Lot Split 5, 2021 Survey


	4. B. SP 61-8-2021 
	SP 61-8-2021 maps
	SP 61-8-2021 Giffels Webster review
	SP 61-8-2021 Engineering review
	SP 61-8-2021 Eng Environmental review
	SP 61-8-2021 Fire review
	SP 61-8-2021 Plans

	4.C. SP 62-8-2021 
	SP 62-8-2021, Maps, Zoning and aerial
	SP 62-8-2021 Giffels Webster review
	SP 62-8-2021 Engineering review
	SP 62-8-2021 Eng Environmental review
	SP 62-8-2021 Fire review
	SP 62-8-2021 Plans

	5. Minutes, August 19, 2021
	5. Minutes, corrected July 15, 2021

